
1 of 11 
 

   Flagstaff Sustainability Commission 
  Minutes 

 
 

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF HYBRID MEETING 

SUSTAINABILITY COMMISSION CITY HALL, STAFF CONFERENCE ROOM 

THURSDAY 
AND MICROSOFT TEAMS 

4:30 – 6:30 PM June 22, 2023 
 

 

Vision: The City of Flagstaff is a culture and community that thrives in response 

to the Climate Crisis. 
 
Mission: To advise Sustainability Division Staff on matters related to climate and 

sustainability, support community projects through Neighborhood Sustainability 

Grants, and provide feedback to the City Council on sustainability issues. 
 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Chair White called the meeting of the Sustainability Commission held June 22nd, 
2023, to order at 4:35 pm.  

 

 

2. Roll Call 
NOTE: One or more Commission Members may be in attendance 

telephonically or by other technological means. Quorum is four commissioners. 

 

 

 
 

Others Present: Briana Aurilio (Minutes), Natalie Pearson (Staff), Nicole Antonopoulos 

(Staff), Danae Presler (Staff), Tia Hatton (Staff), Summer White (Staff), Karen Hendricks 

(Presenter) 

 

 

3. Land Acknowledgement 
The Flagstaff City Council humbly acknowledges the ancestral homelands of 

this area’s Indigenous nations and original stewards. These lands, still 

inhabited by Native descendants, border mountains sacred to Indigenous 

peoples. We honor them, their legacies, their traditions, and their continued 

contributions. We celebrate their past, present, and future generations who will 

forever know this place as home. 

__X__ Chair Kevin White 
 

____ Commissioner Kristen Konkel ___X_ Vice Chair Paul Beier 

__X__ Commissioner Margaret 
Steiger 

__X__ Commissioner Molly 
McCormick 



2 of 11 
 

 
 
 
4. Public Comment 

At this time, any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject 

within their jurisdiction that is not scheduled before the Commission on that day. Due 

to Open Meeting Laws, the Commission cannot discuss or act on items presented 

during this portion of the agenda. To address the Commission on an item that is on 

the agenda, and you are on Teams, please use the Teams Chat function and simply 

type in ‘public comment’ to indicate to the Chair that you would like to comment. The 

Chair will then recognize you when it is time for public comment, and staff will 

unmute your microphone if needed. 

 
No public comment. 

 
5. Approve May Minutes (5 minutes) 
 
 
 Vice Chair Beier commented about adjusting some wording in May’s minutes. 
  

Chair White expanded on a comment from May’s minutes and said that he 
applauds Friends of Flagstaff Future for returning grant funding when it became 
clear that they would not be able to fulfill their grant. 

 

Moved by Commissioner McCormick, seconded by Commissioner 
Steiger to approve the May 25th, 2023 minutes.  
 
Vote: 4-0 Unanimously Passed   

 

 

6. Business 
 

 

A. Sustainability Division: New Staff Introduction and May 

Division Update (10 minutes)  
Natalie Pierson (Sustainable Food Systems VISTA) and Danae Presler 
(new Climate Analyst)  
Requested Action: Informational 
 

Nicole Antonopoulos introduced a new staff member of the Sustainability 

Office, Danae Presler. Ms. Presler greeted the Commission and gave a 

brief background on herself. 

 

Natalie Pierson gave updates on the Stream Stewards program, annual 

watershed cleanup, and community gardens.  

 

Summer White commented on the raised garden beds used for the 

community gardens.   

 

 



3 of 11 
 

 

 

 

 

B. City of Flagstaff Recycling Update (10 minutes)  
Summer White (Waste Reduction & Food Systems 

Coordinator) Requested Action: Informational 

 

Summer White gave a presentation on the recycling update for 

Flagstaff.  

 

Ms. Antonopoulos described the background of the recycling 

situation in Flagstaff.  

 

Ms. Antonopoulos described the importance of proper 

recycling and recycling education.  

 

Chair White asked what service the Recycle by City website 

offers. Ms. White described the website and the various 

features it offers. Chair White asked if the site tracks how many 

people using the site and how it is being used. Ms. White 

clarified that the Sustainability Office does have that 

information.  

 

Ms. Antonopoulos expanded on the other features of the 

Recycle by City website.  

 

Vice Chair Beier discussed an article he read about how most 

plastic is not get recycled and asked for enlightenment 

regarding this issue and Phoenix’s plastic recycling. Ms. 

Antonopoulos answered that perfecting recycling is challenging 

but there is opportunity for improvement.  

 

Ms. Presler discussed an initiative to incentivize corporations 

to collect their own plastic back.  

 

Chair White proposed that the recycling issue should be 

discussed further in future meetings.  

 

Commissioner McCormick asked if there would be space to 

help shape the city’s recycling efforts and expressed interest in 



4 of 11 
 

doing more. Ms. Antonopoulos said that staff will reach out with 

more information. Chair White also expressed interest in 

collaborating.    

 

Presentation slides available at the end of this document. 
 
 

C. Neighborhood Sustainability Grant – Flagstaff Disc Golf Club 

(10 minutes)  
Representative Karen Hendricks present for questions. See provided 

letter. Requested Action: Discussion and Vote 

 

Karen Hendricks discussed a proposed plan on how to use the 

remaining funds of the Flagstaff Disc Golf Club’s Neighborhood 

Sustainability Grant (NSG).   

 

Chair White asked for clarification that the proposed plan will be a 

permanent feature. Ms. Hendricks confirmed that the proposed plan will 

be permanent.   

  

Moved by Vice Chair Beier, seconded by Commissioner McCormick 

on the expansion of the scope of Flagstaff Disc Golf Club’s 

Neighborhood Sustainability Grant.  

 

Vote: 4-0 Unanimously Passed  

 

D. Neighborhood Sustainability Grants – Application Update & 
Scoring Rubric (30 minutes)  
Kevin White 
Requested Action: Discussion and Vote 
 
Chair White discussed the proposed updates to the Neighborhood 
Sustainability Grant application and scoring rubric set by the 
subcommittee.   
 
Vice Chair Beier commented that he thought the new updates are superb 
and thanks the subcommittee and suggested some minor edits. 
 
Chair White asked if the document will need to be voted on for every non-
substantive proofreading. Ms. Antonopoulos answered that minor edits 
can be done and there will be no need for voting. 
 
Commissioner Steiger commented that some formatting in the document 
should be adjusted and suggested adding a watermark to the document.  
 
Commissioner McCormick proposed some rephrasing in the document to 
clarify readers about greenhouse gas emissions.  



5 of 11 
 

 
Ms. Antonopoulos discussed some opportunities and resources that could 
be offered to applicants to calculate emissions. Ms. Hatton suggested 
adding a phone number for additional aid.   
 
Vice Chair Beier asked to whom he would send editorial suggestions. Ms. 
Antonopoulos answered that Ms. Hatton would be doing it.   
 
 
Moved by Vice Chair Beier, seconded by Commissioner McCormick 
to approve the update to the Neighborhood Sustainability Grant 
application and scoring rubric with the proposed modifications. 
 
Vote: 4-0 Unanimously Passed    

 

 

E. Ordinance Discussion (10-15 
minutes) Nicole Antonopoulos  
Requested Action: Informational 
 
Ms. Antonopoulos discussed the ordinance from the clerk’s office and 
suggested updating it to better support the sustainability division.   
 
Vice Chair Beier suggested inviting the mayor to think about reducing the 
number of commissions from fifty to twenty.  
 
Commissioner Steiger commented that she is looking forward to aligning 
the Commission’s mission and purpose with the Sustainability Office.   

 

7. To and From (5 minutes) 
A. Commission Appointments 

 
Ms. Antonopoulos shared that City Council formally approved an award of 
contract to the Engage, Empower, and Elevate (E3) program.  
 
Ms. Hatton shared an update on the recruitment for the Commission.   

 

8. Future Agenda Item Requests – All (5 minutes) 
 

Vice Chair Beier requested more information on taking the recycling 
program in new directions.    

 
Commissioner McCormick suggested adding more time to discuss 
important events.  

 
Ms. Antonopoulos commented on the possible discussion about the 
revegetation of a burn scar.   

 
 
 
 
 



6 of 11 
 

 
9. Adjournment 

 
 

The meeting of the Sustainability Commission on June 22nd, 2023, 
adjourned at 6:05 pm by Chair White. 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 of 11 
 

 
 

 
 



8 of 11 
 

 

 



9 of 11 
 

 

 



10 of 11 
 

 

 



11 of 11 
 

 


